
 

Western WUCC  Page 1 of 5  Meeting Date: 4‐24‐2018 

Meeting Minutes 
Western WUCC Convening Meeting 

Brookfield Municipal Center – 100 Pocono Road, Brookfield, CT 
April 24, 2018 10:00 AM 

 
 
The Western Water Utility Coordinating Committee (WUCC) held a meeting on April 24th, 2018 at 10:00 
a.m. at the Brookfield Municipal Center at 100 Pocono Road in Brookfield, Connecticut.  Prior written 
notice of this meeting was given via emails from the Department of Public Health (DPH) to eligible 
WUCC members, chief administrative officials, local health directors, town clerks, the Secretary of State, 
state agencies (OPM, PURA, DEEP, CT Office of Consumer Counsel, CT DOT, CT DECD, the Commissioner 
of Agriculture), and other interested persons.  Notice of the meeting was also posted on the DPH 
website http://portal.ct.gov/DPH/Drinking‐Water/WUCC/Water‐Utility‐Coordinating‐Committee. 
 
The following WUCC member representatives were in attendance (listed in alphabetical order of 
affiliation): 
 

WUCC Member Representative  Affiliation 

Dan Lawrence (Co‐Chair)  Aquarion Water Company 

Tom Villa  Town of Bethel

Mike Elliot  First District Water Department 

David Banker  Metropolitan District Commission 

Aaron Budris  Naugatuck Valley Council of Government 

Tom Quigley  Town of New Fairfield 

Jennifer Murphy  Newport Academy 

Tiffany Lufkin  South Central CT Regional Water Authority 

Fred Rogers  Torrington Water Company 

 
The following non‐WUCC member representatives were in attendance (listed in alphabetical order of 
affiliation): 
  

Non‐WUCC Member 
Representative 

Affiliation 

Doug Hoskins  CT Department of Energy & Environmental Protection 

Eric McPhee  CT Department of Public Health

David Murphy  Milone & MacBroom, Inc. (MMI)

Len DeJong  Pomperaug River Watershed Coalition

Dawn Tobin  Public

Margaret Miner  Rivers Alliance

Reale Lemay  Water System Specialties

 
A copy of the meeting agenda is attached.  The following actions took place: 

 

1. Welcome & Roll Call 
 
The Chair opened the meeting at 10:04 AM.  The chair requested a roll call of attendees.  Mr. Murphy 
provided a brief refresher of the process to date and an overview of the goals of the meeting. 
 



 

Western WUCC  Page 2 of 5  Meeting Date: 4‐24‐2018 

 
2. Review of March Meeting Minutes 
 
Mr. Lawrence asked if there were any comments or changes from the floor.  No comments were made.  
Mr. Elliot moved to approve the minutes.  Ms. Lufkin seconded.  Members voted unanimously to 
approve. 
 
 
3. Review of Formal Correspondence 
 
Mr. Banker stated that seven correspondences had been sent or received by the Western WUCC since 
the last meeting: 

 2018‐03‐20 – Letter from Western WUCC posted with Draft Integrated Report and Executive 
Summary for public comment.  

 2018‐03‐26 – Email with Public Comment from Mark Widomski regarding the Draft Integrated 
Report & Executive Summary. 

 2018‐03‐27 – Email from DPH regarding Newport Academy North Campus for discussion at next 
WUCC meeting. 

 2018‐04‐05 – Letter from Aquarion Water Company received requesting the modification of the 
Exclusive Service Area boundary between Aquarion Water Company and the Town of New 
Fairfield. 

 2018‐04‐10 – Received circular Letter 2018‐09 from the CT Department of Public Health. 

 2018‐04‐18 – Letter with comments from the CT Department of Energy & Environmental 
Protection for the Draft Integrated Report & Executive Summary. 

 2018‐04‐20 – Letter with comments from CT Department of Public Health for the Draft 
Integrated Report & Executive Summary. 

 

 

4. Public Comment 
 
The Chair opened the public comment period. 

 Ms. Miner requested to extend the public comment period for the draft integrated report and 
executive summary.  Additionally, Ms. Miner expressed concerns regarding what capitalized 
versus lower case ESA represents, consolidation or elimination of small systems, policy for 
changing ESA’s, reviewing positives and negatives for regional interconnections, available water 
from water utilities and how it is calculated, awareness of WUCC membership among TNC and 
NTNC systems, basis for decisions of if/when to extend water systems to serve properties and 
standards ESA holders can enforce on developers versus minimum DPH standards. 

 Ms. Miner notified attendees of a pending conference at Roxbury town hall on May 18th, 2018 
to discuss water sources and quality in Connecticut. 

 Mr. DeJong noted that the draft plan is a good platform for additional work but stated that he 
would benefit from an extension of the timeline to comment on the draft integrated plan.  He 
also commented on section 10.5 of the Integrated report, encouraging water utilities to provide 
water usage data at a sub‐regional basin level when possible, which could benefit watershed 
groups. 

 A discussion of extending the comment period and/or accepting further comments ensued. 



 

Western WUCC  Page 3 of 5  Meeting Date: 4‐24‐2018 

 Mr. Murphy stated that the next WUCC meeting date will be extended, so the comment period 
could be extended, if needed. 

 Mr. Lawrence asked how much additional time would be needed. 

 Ms. Miner stated that she would accept any time which could be offered. 

 Mr. Villa asked how many comment periods have already been offered on other sections of the 
coordinated water supply plan. 

 Mr. Lawrence responded that public comment periods were included in each of the two 
sections previously completed. 

 Ms. Lufkin confirmed that notifications had been posted in local town halls. 

 Mr. Lemay stated that notification could be provided to certified operators. 

 Mr. Lawrence stated that prior notification had been made to system owners via letters and 
emails. 

 Mr. Murphy reviewed the schedule for the remaining meeting, tentatively scheduled for May 
22nd, 2018. 

 There was a discussion among the attendees regarding whether the deadline for public 
comment could be extended and if formal notification of an extension is feasible due to the 
imminent deadlines.  There was consensus among members that the WUCC would not formally 
extend the comment period due to the pending deadline, but it will continue to accept 
comments submitted for the next week and the comments would be included in the appendices 
of the Integrated Report.  

 
 
5. Discuss & Opportunity for Comment – Aquarion/Town of New Fairfield ESA Modification  
 

 Mr. Lawrence provided a summary of the ESA modification before the WUCC, which consists of 
a single parcel transferring ESA from the Town of New Fairfield to Aquarion Water Company.  
The parcel currently has an Aquarion water main in the roadway in front of it and is not served 
by the Town of New Fairfield. 

 Ms. Lufkin asked if there are any other properties in the immediate area which may need service 
in the future, i.e. should we consider adding other parcels to the ESA modification. At this point, 
Mr. Murphy provided ten years of background information including the Potable Water Consent 
Order and the desire of the Town to interconnect with Aquarion and eventually for the Town 
system to be acquired by Aquarion. 

 Mr. Quigley stated that the Town of New Fairfield does not currently have excess supply to 
provide to new customers. 

 Mr. Lawrence stated that this connection needs to be made soon, due to issues with the well 
which currently serves the property.  There could be other similar ESA modifications in the 
future, but this is the only one anticipated at this time. 

 Ms. Miner asked how the WUCC will make policy decisions similar to the modification with New 
Fairfield.  She asked specifically how this issue would “scale up” to larger situations that are 
similar. 

 Mr. Lawrence responded that it is highly dependent upon the economics of each situation, in 
this case the property is adjacent to an Aquarion water main, so connecting makes sense. 

 Ms. Miner stated that property owners affected in ESA modifications should be notified. 

 There was consensus among members to proceed with the ESA modification, transferring the 
parcel from the New Fairfield ESA to Aquarion’s ESA. 

 



 

Western WUCC  Page 4 of 5  Meeting Date: 4‐24‐2018 

 
6. Newport Academy North Campus ‐ Correspondence  
 

 The  WUCC  discussed  the  development  of  a  new  small  water  system  to  serve  the  Newport 

Academy North Campus development within Aquarion’s ESA in Bethlehem. 

 Mr. Lemay is the contract operator for Newport Academy’s existing small system.  He provided a 

summary of the new system, which will serve 4 dorm buildings with 52 beds, 2 administration 

buildings and an equine center with a maintenance building. 

 Mr. Lawrence stated that he believes that facilities similar to schools should be held to higher 

standards, due to the sensitive population which they serve. 

 Mr. Lemay  responded  that all water quality  tests are performed on  these systems, except  for 

radiological tests. 

 Mr.  Lawrence  stated  that  due  to  the  location,  a  water  main  extension  is  not  feasible,  but 

Aquarion  is  willing  to  own  and  operate  the  system,  or  allow  Newport  Academy  to  own  and 

operate the system. 

 Mr. Lemay  invited representative of Aquarion and the Department of Public Health to visit the 

Newport Academy site. 

 Mr. Hoskins asked of Neport Academy’s two water systems will be interconnected. 

 Mr. Lemay replied that they would not be connected, due to the distance between the systems. 

 Mr. DeJong expressed  concern with  the water extraction,  since  the  campus  is  located on  the 

headwaters of the Pomperaug River watershed. 

 Mr.  Lemay  responded  that  the  historic  water  usage  at  the  existing  campus  is  approximately 

3,000 gallons per day. 

 Mr. McPhee added that DPH sent a letter regarding the need to monitor adjacent low yield wells 

which will need to be monitored during well testing. 

 Mr. Lemay expressed concern with what is considered an effect on wells and the ability to gain 

access to private wells to conduct monitoring. 

 Mr. McPhee stated that the statutory requirements are the same for anyone. 

 Ms. Miner asked if there is any consideration if a well could effect a nearby vernal pool. 

 Mr. McPhee responded that DPH does not consider such impacts. 

 Mr. Elliot made a motion to approve the creation of a new water system owned and operation 

by Newport Academy to the proposed North Campus. 

 Mr. Villa seconded the motion. 

 The members unanimously approved the motion. 

  

 

7. Review & Discuss Public Comments Received ‐ Integrated Report & Executive Summary  
 

 Mr. Murphy discussed scheduling the next WUCC meeting.   Potential dates discussed  included 

5/22, 5/29 and 6/4. 

 Mr. Lawrence proposed May 22nd, which avoids the Memorial Day holiday weekend. 



 

Western WUCC  Page 5 of 5  Meeting Date: 4‐24‐2018 

 There was consensus among members to hold the next meeting on Tuesday May 22nd. 

 Mr. Murphy reviewed the comments received by the Western WUCC as well as the Central and 

Eastern WUCCs. 

 Ms. Miner asked if the comments will be added to the WUCC webpage. 

 Mr. McPhee  responded  that  if  the comments are  thoughtful and content driven, he does not 

see an issue with adding them to the webpage. 

 Mr.  Murphy  reviewed  a  series  of  recommended  word  changes  for  the  recommendations 

discussed at last month’s meeting, to provide consistent language with the other WUCCs. 

 Ms. Miner asked how the report’s drought recommendations align with the state drought plan. 

 Mr. Lawrence responded that the three plans are not yet consistent and  it will take additional 

time and effort, but the WUCC plans allow for this to be resolved. 

 Ms. Miner stated  that  the  regulations, State Water Plan, WUCC Plan and proposed  legislation 

have different approaches to drought. 

 Mr. Lawrence replied that utilities want the ability to determine drought triggers, since each 

system responds to drought differently. 

 
 
8. Other Business  
 

 Mr.  Murphy  discussed  the  term  of  the  WUCC  officers  and  the  need  for  nominations  and 

elections at the next meeting. 

 Mr. McPhee suggested that the WUCC consider staggering the terms of the chair to provide an 

overlap in terms for continuity in leadership. 

 Mr.  Quigley  asked  if  the  bylaws  have  a  clause  to  allow  officers  to  continue  to  serve  until  a 

replacement is elected. 

 Mr. Murphy confirmed that the WUCC’s bylaws include this provision. 

 Mr. Lawrence stated that nominations and elections would be  included on the agenda for the 

next WUCC meeting. 

 Mr. Murphy informed WUCC members of a community water system survey being conducted by 

the University of Connecticut and asked members to participate. 

 
As there was no more business, Mr. Lawrence made a motion to adjourn.  Ms. Lufkin seconded the 
motion.  The motion passed unanimously and the meeting closed at 11:23 AM. 
 
The next Western WUCC Meeting is scheduled for Tuesday May 22nd, 2018 to be held at the Brookfield 
Municipal Center at 100 Pocono Road in Brookfield, Connecticut. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
David Banker, Recording Secretary – Western WUCC 






























